CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Southern Planning Committee** held on Wednesday, 1st March, 2017 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT

Councillor G Merry (Chairman) Councillor M J Weatherill (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, P Butterill, W S Davies, S Edgar, S Gardiner (for Cllr Clowes), A Kolker, J Rhodes, B Roberts and B Walmsley

NON-COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor P Bates

OFFICERS PRESENT

Daniel Evans (Principal Planning Officer) Patricia Evans (Senior Planning and Highways Lawyer) Andrew Goligher (Principal Development Control Officer - Highways) Richard Taylor (Principal Planning Officer) Julie Zientek (Democratic Services Officer)

Apologies

Councillors D Bebbington

Apologies due to Council Business

Councillor J Clowes

114 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION

The following declarations were made in the interests of openness:

With regard to application number 16/0285C, Councillor Rhoda Bailey declared that she knew the applicant's mother and had met the applicant once. She had not discussed the application and had kept an open mind.

With regard to application number 16/5371N, Councillor B Walmsley declared that she was a Director of The Skills and Growth Company. In addition, the applicant was based in Middlewich but she had not discussed the application.

With regard to application number 16/4787N, Councillor S Edgar declared that he has been asked by the Parish Council to call in the application on their behalf, but that he had kept an open mind.

With regard to application number 16/3464N, Councillor S Gardiner declared that he was substituting for Councillor J Clowes who had called in the application but that he had not discussed it with her.

115 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

116 16/5371N ADMIRAL COURT, ELECTRA WAY, CREWE: THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF A 4 STOREY OFFICE BUILDING EXTENDING TO 6,136 SQUARE METRES AND PROVISION OF 182 CAR PARKING SPACES FOR MISS ISLA LONGMUIR, POCHIN DEVELOPMENTS LTD

Note: Mr B Holmes and Mr J Suckley attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant.

Note: Councillor S Gardiner declared that he had in the past had dealings with Mr Suckley regarding sites in Knutsford.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the completion of a Planning Obligation and/or S111 Agreement to secure the following:
- A contribution of £7,500 towards a Traffic Management Scheme
- A contribution of £5,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring

And the following conditions:

- 1. Standard Time 3 years
- 2. Approved Plans
- 3. Prior to the use of any facing/roofing material details of materials to be submitted and agreed
- 4. Prior to the use of any facing/roofing material details of boundary treatment to be submitted and agreed
- 5. Details of Levels to be submitted and agreed
- 6. Prior to the use of any facing/roofing material details of landscaping to be submitted and agreed
- 7. Landscaping implementation
- 8. Development to proceed in accordance with the GCN reasonable avoidance measures
- 9. Method Statement for off-site habitat works to ponds including a timetable for implementation shall be submitted and agreed
- 10. Nesting birds timing of works

- 11. Prior to the use of any facing/roofing material details of external lighting to be submitted and agreed
- 12. Prior to the commencement of development an updated survey for other protected species shall be submitted and agreed
- 13. Piling Method Statement to be submitted and agreed
- 14. Travel Plan to be submitted and agreed
- 15. Contaminated Land
- 16. Provision of electric vehicle charging points
- 17. Construction Management Plan to be submitted and agreed
- 18. Compliance with the submitted FRA
- 19. Detailed design and associated management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage to be submitted and approved
- 20. Implementation of the tree protection measures
- 21. Addendum to the AMS to include details of the supervising arboriculturalist
- 22. The provision of 18 cycle parking spaces to be made available in accordance with the submitted plans prior to first occupation and thereafter retained
- 23. Car parking as shown on the submitted plans to be provided prior to first occupation
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.
- (c) That, should this application be the subject of an appeal, the following Heads of Terms should be secured as part of any Planning Obligation and/or S111 Agreement:
- A contribution of £7,500 towards a Traffic Management Scheme
- A contribution of £5,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring.

117 16/5403N THE WIG CENTRE, 166 EDLESTON ROAD, CREWE CW2 7EZ: PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM GROUND FLOOR SHOP AND FIRST FLOOR RESIDENTIAL USE INTO A 8 BEDROOM SUI GENERIS HMO PROPERTY FOR MATTHEW LITTLE, AEVUM INVESTMENTS LTD

Note: The Principal Planning Officer read a representation from Councillor S Hogben (Ward Councillor), who was unable to attend the meeting.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. 3 years commencement
- 2. Compliance with approved plans
- 3. Materials as specified
- 4. Details of ventilation
- 5. Details of glazing
- 6. Details of acoustic trickle vents / wall ventilators
- 7. Refuse and cycle storage to be provided as shown
- 8. Revised plans to show changes to the internal kitchen layout and provision of a window to the kitchen

Informatives:

- 1. Working hours for constructions
- 2. Contaminated land
- 3. The developer to be notified of the requirements for a licence (in terms of occupancy rates and communal rooms) and that tenancy agreements will be required
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

118 16/0285C LAND EAST OF ELBOURNE DRIVE, SCHOLAR GREEN: OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE REMAINING LAND TO THE EAST OF ELBOURNE DRIVE FOR MS A POWELL

Note: Mr G Roberts (Parish Clerk on behalf of Odd Rode Parish Council), Ms P Wainwright (objector) and Mr M Pardoe (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

Note: Mr I Walker (objector) had not registered his intention to address the Committee. However, in accordance with paragraph 2.8 of the public speaking rights at Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committee meetings, the Committee agreed to allow Mr Walker to speak.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to a S106 Agreement to secure:
- 30% affordable housing (9 of which 1 shall be a bungalow for the over 55's in a 65:35 split affordable rent: intermediate tenure);
- Public Open Space (provision of open space, transfer to a management company and maintenance in perpetuity);
- £81,713.45 secondary education contribution

And the following conditions:

- 1. Commencement outline
- 2. Submission of reserved matters
- 3. Approved Plans
- 4. Retention of trees identified for retention within the site
- 5. Submission of tree protection measures
- 6. Submission and approval of a Construction and environmental Management Plan including a construction compound within the site/dust mitigation etc
- Restriction on hours of piling to 9am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday, 9am to 1pm Saturday and no working on Sundays or public holidays.
- 8. Submission of a Phase II Contaminated Land Report
- 9. Provision of electric vehicle charging points for each dwelling
- 10. Submission of details of foul and surface water drainage
- 11. Submission of a detailed drainage scheme
- 12. sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
- 13. Updated bat survey
- 14. Land stability report by a suitably qualified engineer to be submitted as part of the first Reserved Matters application. Validation Report to be submitted following the completion of the development to confirm that there has been no impact
- 15. Reserved matters to include boundary treatments inc Canal boundary
- 16. Lighting information adjoining canal
- 17. Updated badger survey
- 18. Bird nesting season
- 19. Reserved matters to include existing and proposed levels/ including land adjacent
- 20. Reserved matters to include arboricultural information in accordance with BS 5837:2012 to include a tree survey no more than 12 months old, an arboricultural impact assessment relating to the final layout and an arboricultural method statement
- 21. Bat and bird boxes
- 22. RM for a maximum of 30 units on this site
- 23. Open Space provision as part of the RM to be no less than 744sqm
- 24. Sustainable Design Strategy to be submitted as part of the first RM application to include a mix of dwellings heights and sizes

Informative:

- No consent is given for the scheme as shown on the indicative plans
- (b) That, in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Planning (Regulation) be granted delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Southern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.
- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms:
- 30% affordable housing (9 of which 1 shall be a bungalow for the over 55's in a 65:35 split affordable rent: intermediate tenure);
- Public Open Space (provision of open space, transfer to a management company and maintenance in perpetuity);
- £81,713.45 secondary education contribution

119 16/5473C LAWTON MERE NURSERIES, CHERRY LANE, CHURCH LAWTON ST7 3QX: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GLASSHOUSES AND CONSTRUCTION OF NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FOR UP TO THREE DWELLINGS FOR GARY AND LORRAINE BARRATT

Note: The Principal Planning Officer read a representation from Councillor E Wardlaw (Ward Councillor), who was unable to attend the meeting.

Note: Parish Councillor R Young (on behalf of Church Lawton Parish Council) and Mr I Pleasant (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

RESOLVED

(a) That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

The Local Planning Authority considers that insufficient information has been provided to satisfactorily demonstrate the loss of the employment uses on this site. As a result the development would not promote a strong rural economy and it has not been demonstrated that there would be no detrimental impact upon the supply of employment land or premises in the Borough. The proposed development would be contrary to Policy EG3 (Existing and Allocated Employment Sites) of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy and Policies E6 (Employment Development in the Green Belt) and E10 (Re-use or Redevelopment of Existing Employment Sites) of the Borough of Congleton Local Plan 2005.

(b) That, in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Planning (Regulation) be granted delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Southern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

120 16/6028N LAND WEST OF NEW ROAD, WRENBURY: OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF UP TO 46 DWELLINGS WITH PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, LANDSCAPING AND SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SYSTEM (SUDS) AND VEHICULAR ACCESS POINT FROM NEW ROAD. ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR MEANS OF ACCESS FOR GLADMAN DEVELOPMENTS

Note: Prior to consideration of this application, the meeting was adjourned for refreshments.

Note: Parish Councillor J McEvoy attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of Wrenbury cum Frith Parish Council.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report and the written update, the application be REFUSED for the following reasons:
- The proposed residential development is unsustainable because it is located within the Open Countryside would result in adverse impact on the landscape character of the area contrary to Policies NE.2 (Open Countryside), NE.12 (Agricultural Land Quality), BE.2 (Design) and RES.5 (Housing in the Open Countryside) of the Crewe and Nantwich Local Plan, Policies PG5 (Open Countryside), SD1, SD2 & SE4 (Landscape) of the emerging Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy and the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework, which seek to ensure development is directed to the right location and open countryside is protected from inappropriate development and maintained for future generations enjoyment and use. As such it creates harm to interests of acknowledged importance.
- 2. Insufficient information has been provided to fully assess the flood risks arising from the proposed development. In particular, the Flood Risk Assessment fails to demonstrate that the proposed development will not increase the risk of fluvial flooding offsite and does not

include how the loss of the floodplain is to be mitigated, such that fluvial flood risk is not increased elsewhere. The proposal is therefore contrary to Crewe and Nantwich Local Plan Policies NE.20, BE.4, Policy SE.13 of the emerging Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy the NPPF

- 3. Insufficient information has been provided in which to assess the agricultural land quality of the site. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy NE.12 of the Crewe and Nantwich Local Plan, Policy SD1 emerging Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy and the NPPF
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.
- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, the following Heads of Terms be secured as part of any S106 Agreement:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Provision of Public Open Space and LAP; POS to include management company for maintenance in perpetuity
- 3. Primary, Secondary and SEN School Education Contribution of £159,899
- 4. TRO to extend the 30mph zone

Informative

The submitted indicative plan is not considered to be acceptable

121 16/5465N OLD DAIRY HOUSE FARM, BATHERTON LANE, BATHERTON CW5 7QH: CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS TO THREE DWELLINGS, ERECTION OF GARAGES AND ASSOCIATED WORKS FOR CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL, CHESHIRE FARMS SERVICE

Note: Councillor A Martin (Ward Councillor) had registered his intention to address the Committee but was not in attendance at the meeting.

Note: Mr C Grant (objector) and Mr I Stevens (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Time (3 years)
- 2. Plans
- 3. Restoration and repair only
- 4. Materials Prior submission of facing, roofing and fenestration details
- 5. New windows and doors to be timber with vertical boarding and with external metal braces
- 6. Barn windows to be multi paned square glazing bar pattern with double/secondary glazing close behind
- Development to comply with Preliminary Ecological Appraisal dated 1st October 2015 prepared by Kingdom Ecology
- 8. Nesting birds mitigation, including Swallow boxes, to be submitted and approved
- 9. Breeding birds timing of works
- 10. Barn owl compensation strategy
- 11. Further barn owl survey
- 12. Landscaping (details) to be submitted and approved
- 13. Landscaping (implementation)
- 14. Boundary treatment to be submitted and approved
- 15. Removal of PD, including removal of PD for new windows
- 16. Contaminated Land 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment
- 17. Contaminated Land 2 Soil verification
- 18. Contaminated Land 3 Unidentified contamination
- 19. Scheme for provision of vehicular and pedestrian passing bays along Batherton Lane. Passing bays to be provided prior to first occupation
- 20. Dust emissions scheme
- 21. Scheme of foul and surface water drainage
- 22. Archaeological record
- 23. Conservation Roof Lights
- 24. Metal Rainwater red in colour

- 25. Scheme of treatment of the existing ventilation openings
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

122 17/0083N OLD DAIRY HOUSE FARM, BATHERTON LANE, BATHERTON CW5 7QH: LISTED BUILDING CONSENT FOR PROPOSED CONVERSION OF REDUNDANT AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS TO RESIDENTIAL FOR CHESHIRE FARMS SERVICE

Note: Mr I Stevens had registered his intention to address the Committee on behalf of the applicant but did not speak.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Time limit
- 2. Plans
- 3. Restoration and repair only
- 4. Materials Prior submission of facing, roofing, rainwater and fenestration details
- 5. New windows and doors to be timber with vertical boarding and with external metal braces
- 6. Barn windows to be multi paned square glazing bar pattern with double/secondary glazing close behind
- 7. Conservation Roof Lights
- 8. Metal Rainwater red in colour
- 9. Scheme of treatment of the existing ventilation openings
- 10. Removal of PD for new windows
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

123 16/3286C 130, HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD, CONGLETON CW12 4NY: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DILAPIDATED BUNGALOW AND GARAGE AND ERECTION OF 4 NO. DWELLINGS FOR MR DAVID DENTON

Note: Councillor P Bates (Ward Councillor), Mr B Haywood (objector) and Mr N Collins (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

Note: Town Councillor A Martin had not registered her intention to address the Committee on behalf of Congleton Town Council. However, in accordance with paragraph 2.8 of the public speaking rights at Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committee meetings, the Committee agreed to allow Councillor Martin to speak.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED

(a) That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

The proposed development is not sympathetic to the character, appearance and form of the site and the surrounding area and represents an overdevelopment of the site. The development is contrary to Policies GR2 (Design) of the Congleton Local Plan, SE1 (Design) of the CELP and guidance within the NPPF.

(b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

124 16/4729N LAND ADJACENT TO YEW TREE FARM, CLOSE LANE, ALSAGER: RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF 40 DWELLINGS COMPRISING OF 1 TO 5 BEDROOM HOMES, OPEN SPACE AND ASSOCIATED WORKS FOR MR SUTTON

Note: Councillor P Butterill left the meeting during consideration of this application.

Note: Mrs S Helliwell (objector) and Mr S Daintith (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Plans
- 2. Notwithstanding details forming part of application materials to be submitted and approved
- 3. Landscaping scheme submission
- 4. Landscaping scheme implementation
- 5. Submission of boundary treatments
- 6. Levels
- 7. 'No dig' hard surface construction for the pedestrian link footpath and car parking bays to be submitted and approved
- 8. Tree Pruning/Felling Specification
- 9. Tree Protection
- 10. No materials to be stored within 5m of ditch/ ditch to be fenced off during construction
- 11. Removal of permitted development rights smaller plots (10-13, 21-29 and 30-31)
- 12. Boundary treatment to be as per plans
- 13. Removal of permitted development for boundary walls forward of building line
- 14. Scheme of works for the diversion of the overhead cables to be submitted
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

125 16/5848C 35, WOODSIDE AVENUE, ALSAGER, STOKE-ON-TRENT, CHESHIRE ST7 2DL: CHANGE OF USE OF AN EXISTING DOUBLE GARAGE INTO A TWO BEDROOM DWELLING HOUSE, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF A NEW PITCHED ROOF FOR MR STEVE MELLOR

Note: Town Councillor S Helliwell attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of Alsager Town Council.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Standard time 3 years
- 2. Approved Plans
- 3. Pile driving limited to 08:30 to 17:30 Monday to Friday, 09:00 13:00 Saturday and not at all on Sundays
- 4. Submission and approval of details of materials
- 5. Landscaping details including boundary treatment to be submitted and approved
- 6. Implementation of landscaping
- 7. Submission of a noise assessment
- 8. Provision of an electric vehicle charging point
- 9. If, during the course of development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present, no further works shall be undertaken in the affected area and the contamination shall be reported to the Local Planning Authority as soon as reasonably practicable (but within a maximum of 5 days from the find). Prior to further works being carried out in the identified area, a further assessment shall be made and appropriate remediation implemented in accordance with a scheme also agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 10. Prior to commencement the developer shall undertake consultation with the HSE and National Grid to confirm that there are no objections to the siting of a dwelling adjacent to the sub-station
- (b) That, in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Planning (Regulation) be granted delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Southern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

126 16/6202N LAND OFF MILL LANE, BULKELEY: OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR 13 DWELLINGS WITH ACCESS OFF MILL LANE INCLUDING 5 AFFORDABLE HOMES: ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT ACCESS FOR MR M SCHOFIELD

Note: Mr C Bowen attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

(a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

Whilst it is acknowledged that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development in the planning balance, it is considered that the development is unsustainable because:

The unacceptable environmental impact of the scheme on the open countryside and character and appearance of the landscape, coupled with the unsustainable location, and the economic impact of loss of best and most versatile agricultural land significantly demonstrably outweighs the economic and social benefits in terms of its contribution to boosting housing land supply, including the contribution to affordable housing. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy NE2, NE.3, and NE12, of the Borough of Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan 2011 and Policy SE4 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy Submission Version as well as the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.

- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.
- (c) That, should this application be the subject of an appeal, the following Heads of Terms should be secured as part of any S106 Agreement:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of affordable housing 3 units to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 2 unit as intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. A contribution of £32,685 towards secondary education.

Informative The indicative plan is not approved as a layout plan

127 16/4787N LAND TO REAR OF 21, MAIN ROAD, SHAVINGTON CW2 5DY: CONSTRUCTION OF THREE DETACHED DWELLINGS ON FORMER GARDEN TO REAR OF 21 MAIN ROAD, SHAVINGTON CW2 5DY FOR S SHAW

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Time (3 years)
- 2. Plans
- 3. Materials as per application
- 4. Scheme of landscaping
- 5. Removal of PD rights A-E
- 6. Tree protection
- 7. Tree Pruning/Felling Specification
- 8. Engineer Designed no dig construction
- 9. Boundary treatments
- 10. Levels
- 11. Nesting birds
- 12. Drainage scheme
- 13. External lighting
- 14. Dust control
- 15. Piling
- 16. Contaminated land
- 17. Construction Management Plan
- 18. Programme of archaeological work
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

128 16/3464N LAND ADJACENT TO CHORLTON LANE, CHORLTON: CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FROM AGRICULTURAL TO PART AGRICULTURAL AND PART KEEPING OF HORSES. RETENTION OF EXISTING SEPTIC TANK, STABLE AND FIELD SHELTER, DOG KENNEL, CHICKEN HOUSE AND ASSOCIATED HARD STANDING (RETROSPECTIVE) FOR MS JONES

Note: Ms S Davies (Parish Clerk on behalf of Hough & Chorlton Parish Council) and Mr S Williams (objector) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Principal Planning Officer referred to correspondence form Councillor J Clowes which had been sent to all members of the Planning Committee.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED – That the application be DEFERRED for the following:

- a Committee Site Inspection;
- a response in relation to the enforcement issues on the site;
- to ensure that accurate plans are provided;
- to consult with Environmental Health in relation to animal husbandry issues on the site.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 4.40 pm

Councillor G Merry (Chairman)